
 

 
AGENDA 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INFORMATION 

Public information on this meeting is posted outside City Hall. 
 

We welcome you to watch Board Meetings via live stream. 
You will find this option on our website at www.ketchumidaho.org/meetings. 
 
If you would like to comment on a public hearing agenda item, please select the best option for your 
participation: 
 

•  Join us via Zoom (please mute your device until called upon) 
   Join the Webinar: https://zoom.us/j/95503161717  
   Webinar ID: 955 0316 1717 
 
•   Address the Board in person at Ketchum City Hall or the Hailey City Hall dependent upon the 
meeting location. 
 
•   Submit your comments in writing at info@bcoha.org (up to 24 hours prior to the meeting) 
 

This agenda is subject to revisions.  All revisions will be underlined. 
 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: By Board Chairman Keith Perry 
ROLL CALL: Pursuant to Idaho Code Section 74-204(4), all agenda items are action items, and a vote 
may be taken on these items. 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD: Communications from the 
Board of Directors 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

1. Public Comments submitted 
2. Public Comments in person (two-minutes, no dialogue) 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE LIASONS: Updates from the Liaisons on their jurisdictions  
3. Liaison Reports 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE STAFF: 
4. Staff update - Housing Director Carissa Connelly 

CONSENT AGENDA:   

 

 

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

Wednesday, January 15, 2025, 10:30 AM 

115 Main Street South, Suite H, Hailey, Idaho 83333 

1



ALL ACTION ITEMS  - The Board is asked to approve the following listed items by a single vote, except 
for any items that a Councilmember asks to be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately. 

5. Approval of the December 18, 2024 BCHA Board Meeting Minutes-Heather Nicolai 
6. Approval of the December 2024 BCHA Financial Reports-Heather Nicolai 
7. Recommendation to Approve Accounting/Bookkeeping Services-Heather Nicolai 

NEW BUSINESS: 
8. Recommendation to approve two contracts for Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice-

Carissa Connelly 
9. Mission Moment-Bri Zak 
10. Featured Staff Member-Jacklyn Highfill 
11. Board Highlights-Keith Perry 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 

2



MONTHLY STAFF UPDATES 

January 10, 2025 

GOAL 1: BUILD ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE + CAPACITY TO SERVE REGIONAL HOUSING 
OPPORTUNITIES + GAPS  

• Onboarding new Operations Manager, including Public House and Homekeeper training 
and project management (Team)  

• Onboarding NEW Administrative Assistant – Jacklyn Highfill. Start date January, 6 2025 
(Heather)  

• Daniel Brown accepted our offer for the position of Program Administrator / Property 
Manager position. Start date is January 21, 2025 (Heather)  

  
GOAL 2: RECOMMEND + ADVOCATE FOR POLICY THAT PROMOTES HOUSING  

• Reviewed text amendment application for adjustments to Blaine County’s Community 
Housing Overlay District, met with County staff and the applicant team, discussed with 
Board Chair and drafted written comment on behalf BCHA Board. Comments are 
supportive of the proposed text amendment but request that community housing unit 
provided through this tool have 65+ year restriction terms and are open to the general 
Blaine County public (not specifically designated for employer-employee units). (Rian, 
Keith, Carissa)  

• Reviewed Hailey Comprehensive Plan updates and met with Hailey’s Planning team to 
discuss Housing section and questions / comments. Provided detailed notes and will 
continue to follow Comprehensive Plan update process (Rian, Carissa)  

• Preparing to contract with consulting firm to assist with Blaine County-wide Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (Rian)  

• Planning for Policy update this winter. Will survey or hold focus groups on specific 
questions and host a post-adoption education session for applicants and program 
participants to ask questions and the housing team to highlight changes and applicability 
of long-standing policies. If a Board member has a specific, suggested edit, please email 
info@bcoha.org for us to add to the working doc and consider in the recommended 
update. (Carissa)  

• Drafted letter to Elkhorn HOA regarding high amenity fees that impact feasibility and 
affordability of deed-restricted units in Elkhorn, attending their January Board meeting 

3

mailto:info@bcoha.org


to discuss making fees and amenity access optional for community homeowners 
(Carissa, Rian)   

• Continuing to research how peer communities handle foreclosure, insurance, damage 
and replacement, as well as net worth / asset qualifications for deed restrictions on 
community housing. (Rian)  

  

GOAL 3: EXPAND, COORDINATE, + IMPROVE SERVICES TO CREATE HOUSING STABILITY  

Housing Navigation  

• Continuing to work with at risk applicants to provide them with resources in our 
community / connect them with Frances for transitional housing if appropriate. (Liz)  

• Bluebird, 51 units from Category 1-6 (new construction) (Bri)  

o Continuing working with Syringa and applicants on lease up of Bluebird. Referred 231 
households and contacted 716 total. Tenants are moving in (Bri)  

o 8 households are planning to move from BCHA’s transitional housing to Bluebird  

• Pull a weekly “at - risk” report of new common intake applicants and provide to Program 
Administrators (Rian)  

Transitional Housing  

• Improving physical and safety infrastructure:  

o Keypad locks with audit tracking for SCL have arrived. Working to get them installed 
(Heather)  

o Cameras over the front entrance at both SCL buildings have been installed to see 
everyone who enters. (Heather)  

o Working with Morgan Ballis to schedule active shooter trainings at SLC & LTL for tenants 
and staff (Heather)  

• Improving operations infrastructure:  

o Cleaning up Silvercreek bookkeeping and rent collection processes (Accountant Jenna, 
Heather, Jacklyn, Ketchum’s Finance team, Liz)  

o Yardi Breeze (property management software system) onboarding is complete. January 
is first month we are using the new system. Hopeful we will be able to more effectively 
track, manage, and report on rent payments (Heather)   

4



o Collected and processed rent from Silver Creek Living and Lift Tower Lodge 
(Heather/Jacklyn)  

o Worked with Legal team to create new SCL tenant leases, 3-day & 30-day eviction 
notices, and 15-day pay or leave documents. Documents have been translated into 
Spanish as well.  (Heather)   

• Tenant assistance:  

o Continuous Case management with current tenants. (Frances)  

o  Reaching out to new applicants who fall under “At Risk.” (Frances)  

o Two Tenants have taken advantage of the newly created forms for Rental Assistance at 
Silver Creek (Heather)  

o Assisting walk–ins with completing Common Intake form and/or resources at the Hailey 
office. (Frances)  

GOAL 4: INFORM, ENGAGE, COLLABORATE  

• Updated our Facebook, Instagram, and website pages to advertise our available units 
and other housing resources (Bri)  

• Working with communications team to improve BCHA’s external communications and a 
unified brand (Carissa, Bri, and Heather)  

• Published database analysis of makeup of applicants based on location preferences, 
interest in buying vs renting, household sizes, income categories, and at-risk households 
on our website (Bri)  

• Organizing focus group on BCHA brand and plan to present updated plan to Board 
inFebruary. (Communications team, Carissa)  

• Coordinating Point in Time (PIT) count with Wood River Valley partners. Count date is 
January 29th (Heather)  
 

GOAL 5: STEWARD/PRESERVE + EXPAND PORTFOLIO OF DEED RESTRICTED HOMES  

Process and data management  

• Revised Acknowledgement and Acceptance (A&A) forms signed by community 
homeowners to include explicit reference to BCHA Community Housing Policies, also 
updated with clear recording instructions. (Rian)  

5



• Continuing to update and create process documents and templates to help with 
onboarding and everyday tasks. Team met again to update sales process document (Bri 
+)  

• Initiated outreach to County Assessor’s office to discuss process for fairly assessing taxes 
on BCHA’s homeownership units and how to best work together (Rian)  

Data and application transition  

• Reviewing and working with Public House consultant to refine application invitation 
emails for properties (Bri, Rian, Heather)  

• Reviewing and refining new application to debug, enhance clarity, and align with latest 
policy (Rian, Bri, Heather)  

• Established priority fixes to prepare for launch of new application system for future 
rental and ownership opportunities. Beginning to review Public House’s updates. (Rian, 
Heather, Bri)  

Application Review   

• Helping applicants navigate the new Software system (Liz)  

• Conducted 1st reviews on 4 full rental applications, 3 purchase applications, following up 
on applications with missing data. (Liz)  

• Assisted 4 applicants with in-person application and Common Intake Form submissions. 
(Liz)  

• Conducting 2nd reviews on application and qualifying them for purchases and rentals 
(Bri)  

• Following up on applicants we haven’t heard from that we are trying to place (Bri and 
Liz)  

 Sale of Deed-Restricted Units   

Bri manages the sales process including working with the sellers and potential buyers, and Liz 
works with applicants including applications reviews and shows the units. Rian prepares 
maximum sales prices, deed restrictions and related documents for closing.  

• Available Sales:  

o 2 Bedroom, Category 6 in Ketchum   

• Sales Under Contract  

6



o 1 Bedroom, Category 4 in Ketchum (new construction)  

o 1 Bedroom, Category 5 in Ketchum  

o 1BR, Category Local in Elkhorn (BCHA-owned unit)  

• Unit Sold  

o 2 Bedroom, Category 6 in Elkhorn  

• Sale converted to rental for the next year due warrantability issues making it unable to 
be financed. The exception request was approved previously for this. The renter is fully 
qualified and can buy the unit at any point during the year.  

o 2 Bedroom, Category 4 in Elkhorn  

Rental lease-up  

Bri manages the rental process including working with the owners/property managers and 
potential renters, and Liz works with applicants including applications reviews and shows the 
units  

• 2 Bedroom, Category 4 in Ketchum  

• 1 Bedroom, Category 4 in Ketchum  

• 1 Bedroom, Category 4 in Ketchum  

Compliance  

• Working with legal team on enforcing compliance with two homeowners and three 
landlords (Ann + Carissa)  

• Working with 1 Community Homeowner on their annual compliance form having 
requested additional information.  (Ann)  

• Sent out 4 non-compliance letters for return of their annual compliance forms.  (Ann)  

• All Community Homeowner’s compliance questionnaires have been sent to 
homeowners. (Ann)  

• Working with one Landlord for a new Workforce renter. (Ann)   

• Working with one homeowner on approval of capital improvements. (Ann)  

 

7



BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Meeting Minutes 

                                                         Wednesday, December 18, 2024, 12:00 PM 
           191 5th Street West, Ketchum, Idaho 83340 

   
 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
CALL TO ORDER: (00:00:33 in video)  
Keith Perry called the meeting to order.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
Keith Perry – Board Chair 
Sarah Seppa – Board Vice-Chair 
Jennifer Rangel – Board Member  
Ana Torres – Board Member (joined via Zoom 00:06:46 in video)  
 
ALSO PRESENT: 
Carissa Connelly – Ketchum Housing Director/BCHA Executive Director 
Heather Nicolai – Ketchum Housing Operations Manager 
Liz Vargas—BCHA Program Administrator 
Bri Zack—BCHA Operations and Application Contractor (via Zoom) 
Jade Riley – City Administrator-Ketchum 
Trent Donat – City Clerk-Ketchum 
Tripp Hutchinson, Ketchum City Councilmember – BCHA Ketchum Liaison 
Jess Rempe, Blaine County Housing Foundation (BCHF) - BCHA BCHF Liaison 
Muffy David, Blaine County Commissioner – BCHA Blaine County Liaison 
Jessica Obenauf, Bellevue City Councilmember, BCHA Bellevue Liaison 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
None in the room  
 
COMMUNICATION FROM BCHA BOARD:  
None 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM BCHA LIAISONS:  
Muffy Davis, Blaine County Commissioner (00:02:20 in video)  
Tripp Hutchinson, Ketchum City Council (00:02:29 in video)  
Jess Rempe, BCHF (00:04:07 in video)  
Jessica Obenauf, Bellevue City Council (00:04:17 in video) 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM STAFF: 
1. Monthly Staff Update  

a. Presented by Carissa Connelly (00:06:26 in video)  
b. Board Question for Staff, Staff response (00:15:50 in video)  
 

CONSENT AGENDA: (00:17:44 in video)  
2. Approval of the October 16, 2024 BCHA Board Meeting Minutes  
3. Approval of the November 13, 2024 BCHA Board Meeting Minutes  
4. Approval of the October 2024 BCHA Financial Report  
5. Approval of the November 2024 BCHA Financial Report  
6. Recommendation to accept Exception Request on Other Residential Ownership from Divorce 
7. Recommendation to accept Exception Request to be Local Senior and Applicable Income Date 

8



BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Meeting Minutes 

                                                         Wednesday, December 18, 2024, 12:00 PM 
           191 5th Street West, Ketchum, Idaho 83340 

   
 

 
 
 
Motion to approve the consent agenda (00:17:42 in video)  
MOVER: Sarah Seppa 
SECONDER: Ana Torres 
AYES: Sarah Seppa, Keith Perry, Ana Torres, Jennifer Rangel 
NAYS: 
RESULT: ADOPTED 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
8. Mission Moment – Jacklyn Highfill  

a. Presented by Liz Vargas (00:18:15 in video)  
b. Board question for Staff, Staff Response (00:19:09 in video) 
 

9. Presentation of Ketchum's Parking Study 
a. Presented by Jade Riley with Board & Liaison Q&A (00:20:23 in video)  

 
10. Public comment submission timeline discussion between Board & Staff (01:18:44 in video)  

a. Board has requested changing the public comment deadline to 24 hours prior to board meeting going 
forward.  (01:19:42 in video)  

 
11. Recommendation to delay Annual Meeting & Board Composition      

a. Presented by Keith Perry (01:25:06 in video)  
 
Motion to move the Annual Meeting & Board Composition to the February Board Meeting (01:25:03 in video)  
MOVER: Sarah Seppa 
SECONDER: Jennifer Rangel 
AYES: Sarah Seppa, Keith Perry, Ana Torres, Jennifer Rangel 
NAYS: 
RESULT: ADOPTED  

          
Meeting Adjourned at 12:03pm (01:27:07 in video) 
MOVER: Sarah Seppa  
SECONDER: Jennifer Rangel 
AYES: Sarah Seppa, Keith Perry, Ana Torres, Jennifer Rangel 
NAYS: 
RESULT: ADOPTED 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by:                                                                                    Approved by: 
 
_____________________                                                                                     _____________________ 
Carissa Connelly                                                                                                      Keith Perry 
City of Ketchum Housing Dir & BCHA Executive Dir                                          BCHA Chair 

9



Financial Reports for period ending December 31, 2024

Prepared on

January 10, 2025

10



Actual Budget over Budget % of Budget
Income

   4010 Sale of Real Estate - Elkhorn Rental to Ownership 60,000  -60,000  0.00%

   4050 City of Ketchum Contributions 200,000  119,477  80,523  167.40%

   4060 Blaine County Contributions 37,500  -37,500  0.00%

   4070 CH Admin Fee 892  1,250  -358  71.33%

   4100 Rental Income 0  

      4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income 85,047  121,728  -36,680  69.87%

         4115 Silvercreek - Laundry Income 1,582  1,188  394  133.17%

      Total 4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income $                        86,629  $                      122,916  -$                       36,286  70.48%

      4130 Elkhorn - Rental Income 2,250  1,730  520  130.06%

   Total 4100 Rental Income $                        88,879  $                      124,646  -$                       35,766  71.31%

   4300 Grants 25,991  27,500  -1,509  94.51%

   4600 Miscellaneous Income 749  749  

Total Income $                      316,512  $                      370,373  -$                       53,861  85.46%

Gross Profit $                      316,512  $                      370,373  -$                       53,861  85.46%

Expenses

   7100 Administrative Services 0  

      7110 Financial Services 5,619  1,000  4,619  561.89%

         7120 Bank Charge 91  91  

      Total 7110 Financial Services $                          5,710  $                          1,000  $                          4,710  571.02%

      7130 Liability Insurance 3,479  10,673  -7,194  32.59%

      7140 Staff/Board Development 750  -750  0.00%

      7150 Subscriptions 335  340  -5  98.53%

   Total 7100 Administrative Services $                          9,524  $                        12,763  -$                         3,239  74.62%

   7200 Managed Rental Costs 457  457  

      7210 Silvercreek - Expenses 0  

         7211 Silvercreek - Operations 61,217  35,308  25,909  173.38%

         7212 Silvercreek - Rental Expense 123,750  123,750  0  100.00%

      Total 7210 Silvercreek - Expenses $                      184,967  $                      159,058  $                        25,909  116.29%

      7230 Elkhorn Village Units 0  

         7231 Elkhorn Village HOA Dues 3,347  3,453  -107  96.91%

         7232 Elkhorn Village Repair & Maintenance 200  603  -403  33.17%

      Total 7230 Elkhorn Village Units $                          3,547  $                          4,056  -$                            510  87.44%

   Total 7200 Managed Rental Costs $                      188,971  $                      163,115  $                        25,856  115.85%

   7400 Contract Labor 0  

      7410 Admin - Contract Labor 2,500  -2,500  0.00%

      7430 Application Review and Placement  - Contract Labor 28,335  2,500  25,835  1133.40%

      7440 City of Ketchum Staffing Reimbursement 92,660  119,477  -26,818  77.55%

      7450 Compliance - Contract Labor 5,060  6,186  -1,126  81.80%

         7455 Legal Fees 2,170  5,000  -2,830  43.40%

      Total 7450 Compliance - Contract Labor $                          7,230  $                        11,186  -$                         3,956  64.63%

   Total 7400 Contract Labor $                      128,225  $                      135,663  -$                         7,439  94.52%

   7500 Office expenses 0  

      7510 Computer & Comm. Expenses 1,029  1,793  -764  57.36%

      7520 Postal and Delivery Services 77  -77  0.00%

      7530 Furniture & Improvements 25  1,500  -1,475  1.64%

      7540 Professional Services and Fees 185  185  

      7550 Rent - BCHA Meriwether Office 2,828  2,828  0  100.00%

      7560 Supplies 86  192  -106  45.04%

   Total 7500 Office expenses $                          4,152  $                          6,390  -$                         2,238  64.98%

   7600 Program Expenses 0  

Total

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Budget vs. Actuals
October - December, 2024

11



      7610 Applications, Forms, & Data Management 2,070  3,191  -1,121  64.86%

      7630 Data and Analysis 25,000  -25,000  0.00%

      7640 Mediation 9,250  12,500  -3,250  74.00%

      7650 Lease-up and Sales 1,503  625  878  240.54%

      7660 Printing and Reproduction 500  -500  0.00%

      7670 Translation & Interpretation 719  1,125  -406  63.93%

      7680 Public Education & Partnership Engagement 51  9,500  -9,449  0.54%

   Total 7600 Program Expenses $                        13,593  $                        52,441  -$                       38,848  25.92%

Total Expenses $                      344,465  $                      370,373  -$                       25,908  93.01%

Net Operating Income -$                       27,954  $                                 0  -$                       27,954  

Net Income -$                       27,954  $                                 0  -$                       27,954  

12



Oct - Dec, 
2024

Oct - Dec, 
2023 (PY) Change % Change

Income

   4050 City of Ketchum Contributions 200,000  200,000  

   4060 Blaine County Contributions 69,778  -69,778  -100.00%

   4070 CH Admin Fee 892  892  

   4100 Rental Income 0  

      4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income 85,047  85,047  

         4115 Silvercreek - Laundry Income 1,582  1,582  

      Total 4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income $           86,629  $                   0  $           86,629  

      4120 Hi Country Motel - Rental Income 37,766  -37,766  -100.00%

      4130 Elkhorn - Rental Income 2,250  4,725  -2,475  -52.38%

   Total 4100 Rental Income $           88,879  $           42,491  $           46,388  109.17%

   4300 Grants 25,991  25,991  

   4600 Miscellaneous Income 749  749  

Total Income $         316,512  $         112,269  $         204,243  181.92%

Gross Profit $         316,512  $         112,269  $         204,243  181.92%

Expenses

   7100 Administrative Services 0  

      7110 Financial Services 5,619  107  5,512  5161.08%

         7120 Bank Charge 91  91  

      Total 7110 Financial Services $            5,710  $               107  $            5,603  5246.61%

      7130 Liability Insurance 3,479  2,899  580  20.01%

      7140 Staff/Board Development 1,116  -1,116  -100.00%

      7150 Subscriptions 335  1,009  -674  -66.80%

   Total 7100 Administrative Services $            9,524  $            5,131  $            4,393  85.63%

   7200 Managed Rental Costs 457  457  

      7210 Silvercreek - Expenses 0  

         7211 Silvercreek - Operations 61,217  61,217  

         7212 Silvercreek - Rental Expense 123,750  123,750  

      Total 7210 Silvercreek - Expenses $         184,967  $                   0  $         184,967  

      7220 Hi Country Motel - Rent paid for facilities 64,350  -64,350  -100.00%

      7230 Elkhorn Village Units 0  

         7231 Elkhorn Village HOA Dues 3,347  3,966  -619  -15.61%

         7232 Elkhorn Village Repair & Maintenance 200  55  145  263.64%

      Total 7230 Elkhorn Village Units $            3,547  $            4,021  -$              474  -11.79%

   Total 7200 Managed Rental Costs $         188,971  $           68,371  $         120,600  176.39%

   7400 Contract Labor 0  

      7420 Policy, Strategy and Management - Contract Labor 15,960  -15,960  -100.00%

      7430 Application Review and Placement  - Contract Labor 28,335  28,335  

      7440 City of Ketchum Staffing Reimbursement 92,660  15,953  76,707  480.84%

      7450 Compliance - Contract Labor 5,060  6,493  -1,433  -22.06%

         7455 Legal Fees 2,170  7,640  -5,470  -71.60%

Total

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Profit and Loss YTD Comparison

October - December, 2024

13



      Total 7450 Compliance - Contract Labor $            7,230  $           14,132  -$           6,902  -48.84%

   Total 7400 Contract Labor $         128,225  $           46,045  $           82,180  178.48%

   7500 Office expenses 0  

      7510 Computer & Comm. Expenses 1,029  3,569  -2,541  -71.19%

      7520 Postal and Delivery Services 97  -97  -100.00%

      7530 Furniture & Improvements 25  25  

      7540 Professional Services and Fees 185  185  

      7550 Rent - BCHA Meriwether Office 2,828  2,673  154  5.78%

      7560 Supplies 86  86  

   Total 7500 Office expenses $            4,152  $            6,340  -$           2,188  -34.51%

   7600 Program Expenses 0  

      7610 Applications, Forms, & Data Management 2,070  1,880  190  10.11%

      7640 Mediation 9,250  3,083  6,167  200.00%

      7650 Lease-up and Sales 1,503  893  610  68.35%

      7670 Translation & Interpretation 719  450  269  59.81%

      7680 Public Education & Partnership Engagement 51  51  

   Total 7600 Program Expenses $           13,593  $            6,306  $            7,287  115.55%

Total Expenses $         344,465  $         132,193  $         212,273  160.58%

Net Operating Income -$         27,954  -$         19,924  -$           8,030  -40.30%

Net Income -$         27,954  -$         19,924  -$           8,030  -40.30%

14



As of Dec 31, 
2024

As of Dec 31, 
2023 (PY) Change % Change

ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

         1100 Cash in Bank 0  30  -30  -100.00%

            1110 DL Evans Checking 93,758  93,758  

            1120 Checking US BANK-1848 -142  934  -1,077  -115.24%

         Total 1100 Cash in Bank $          93,615  $                964  $          92,651  9606.50%

         Restricted Cash (deleted) 0  0  0  

            Capital Repl Reserve US Bank 0423 (deleted) 0  1,850  -1,850  -100.00%

         Total Restricted Cash (deleted) $                   0  $             1,850  -$           1,850  -100.00%

      Total Bank Accounts $          93,615  $             2,814  $          90,801  3226.23%

      Accounts Receivable

         1200 Accounts Receivable 26,016  0  26,016  

      Total Accounts Receivable $          26,016  $                    0  $          26,016  

   Total Current Assets $        119,632  $             2,814  $        116,817  4150.61%

   Other Assets

      Investment in Property/Housing (deleted) 0  314,540  -314,540  -100.00%

   Total Other Assets $                   0  $         314,540  -$       314,540  -100.00%

TOTAL ASSETS $        119,632  $         317,355  -$       197,723  -62.30%

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

            2000 Accounts Payable -24,774  282  -25,056  -8875.73%

         Total Accounts Payable -$         24,774  $                282  -$         25,056  -8875.73%

         Other Current Liabilities

            Security Deposit (deleted) 0  1,150  -1,150  -100.00%

         Total Other Current Liabilities $                   0  $             1,150  -$           1,150  -100.00%

      Total Current Liabilities -$         24,774  $             1,432  -$         26,206  -1829.66%

   Total Liabilities -$         24,774  $             1,432  -$         26,206  -1829.66%

   Equity

      3000 Opening Bal Equity -313,390  0  -313,390  

      3040 Retained Earnings 485,749  335,846  149,903  44.63%

      Net Income -27,954  -19,924  -8,030  -40.30%

   Total Equity $        144,405  $         315,922  -$       171,517  -54.29%

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $        119,632  $         317,355  -$       197,723  -62.30%

Total

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet Comparison 

As of December 31, 2024

15



Elkhorn Village Silver Creek Living Total
Income

   4100 Rental Income

      4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income 85,047  85,047  

         4115 Silvercreek - Laundry Income 1,582  1,582  

      Total 4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income $                                      0  $                             86,629  $      86,629  

      4130 Elkhorn - Rental Income 2,250  2,250  

   Total 4100 Rental Income $                               2,250  $                             86,629  $      88,879  

Total Income $                               2,250  $                             86,629  $      88,879  

Gross Profit $                               2,250  $                             86,629  $      88,879  

Expenses

   7200 Managed Rental Costs

      7210 Silvercreek - Expenses

         7211 Silvercreek - Operations 61,217  61,217  

         7212 Silvercreek - Rental Expense 123,750  123,750  

      Total 7210 Silvercreek - Expenses $                                      0  $                           184,967  $    184,967  

      7230 Elkhorn Village Units

         7231 Elkhorn Village HOA Dues 3,347  3,347  

         7232 Elkhorn Village Repair & Maintenance 200  200  

      Total 7230 Elkhorn Village Units $                               3,547  $                                      0  $        3,547  

   Total 7200 Managed Rental Costs $                               3,547  $                           184,967  $    188,514  

   7600 Program Expenses

      7650 Lease-up and Sales 876  876  

   Total 7600 Program Expenses $                                  876  $                                      0  $           876  

Total Expenses $                               4,423  $                           184,967  $    189,390  

Net Operating Income -$                              2,173  -$                            98,338  -$   100,510  

Net Income -$                              2,173  -$                            98,338  -$   100,510  

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Profit and Loss by Property

October - December, 2024

16



 
  

BOARD MEETING AGENDA MEMO 
 

 
Meeting Date: January 15, 2025 Staff Member: Heather Nicolai 

 
Agenda Item: Recommendation to Approve Accounting/Bookkeeping Services 

 
  Recommended Motion: 

I move to approve engagement letter with Mindy J. Reed, Bookkeeper/Accountant at VABACS L.L.C. 

 
  Reasons for Recommendation: 

• The city’s Treasurer requested BCHA engage separate accounting and bookkeeping services for a 
clear division of roles 

• Mindy J. Reed understands BCHA’s needs and has the capacity and expertise to adequately service 
BCHA 

 
  Financial Impact: 

None OR Adequate funds exist in account: Adequate funds 
 
  Attachments: 

1. Res. 2025-01 
2. Contract for Services-VABACS-Mindy J Reed 
3. Engagement Letter for Accounting/Bookkeeping services 

 
  

17



RESOLUTION No. 2025-01 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AUTHORIZING THE ENGAGEMENT OF MINDY J. REED BOOKKEEPER/ACCOUNTANT, FOR 

ACCOUNTING/BOOKKEEPING SERVICES 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Ketchum Finance team is familiar with BCHA’s finance needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Ketchum Finance team recommended separating accounting and bookkeeping 

services of BCHA for clarity of roles; and 
 

WHEREAS, BCHA executive director supports this recommendation; and 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Blaine County Housing 
Authority, Blaine County, Idaho, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners approves and authorizes the execution 
of Engagement Letter to engage services of Mindy J. Reed, Bookkeeper/Accountant on January 15, 2025, set 
forth in Attachment 2, attached and incorporated herein, and directs the Executive Director to proceed with 
assisting in implementing the scope of work. 
 
 
 
DATED this ____day of ______, 2025 
 

 
ATTEST:     BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
_____________________________      ____________________________________ 
 
Carissa Connelly, BCHA Executive Director     Keith Perry, BCHA Board Chair 
 

18



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT WITH MINDY J REED, VABACS L.L.C. 
FOR SERVICES 

 
This Independent Contractor Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered effective to the 15th of 

January, 2025, by and between the Blaine County Housing Authority ( “BCHA”), and Mindy J. Reed, VABACS 
L.L.C. ("Contractor"). 

 
FINDINGS 

 
A. The BCHA is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

Idaho. 

B. the BCHA is duly authorized and empowered to enter into such an agreement; 

C. Contractor independently provides certain professional services which may be beneficial and of 
use for the general welfare of the BCHA. 

D. The BCHA finds that it is economical and efficient and that is in the best interests of the BCHA to 
contract with Contractor for certain services as set forth herein (“Services”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this Agreement according to the following terms and conditions: 
 
1. Description of Services. Please refer to the scope of services as proposed in the proposal submitted 

with this contract. 
 

2. Payment for Services. In exchange for Services, the BCHA shall pay Contractor $65 per hour, not to 
exceed $2,000 annually without additional BCHA approval. Invoices for payment will be submitted 
monthly and payment made by BCHA upon BCHA review and approval within approximately thirty 
days.  

 
3. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be through the duration of Services, not to exceed the 

specified maximum hours. This term may be renewed or extended upon further written agreement 
between the parties. 
 

4. Independent Contractor. Contractor performs the Services hereunder solely and exclusively as an 
independent contractor.  Contractor is not an employee, servant, agent, partner, or joint venture of the 
BCHA. The BCHA will determine the projects or Services to be done by Contractor, but Contractor will 
determine the legal means by which it accomplishes the work specified by the BCHA.  This Agreement 
shall not be construed to create or establish any employee-employee relationship between the BCHA 
and Contractor or make Contractor eligible for any BCHA employment benefits. Contractor is solely 
responsible for all withholding and payment of all applicable federal, state, and local income or payroll 
taxes of any kind.    

 
5. Performance and Warranty.  Contractor will provide its own tools and equipment as needed to 

perform the Services.  Contractor warrants that all equipment used to perform this Agreement will 
function safely, properly, and efficiently.  Contractor warrants that all services will be timely 
performed in a safe, professional, and workmanlike manner. 

 

19



6. Indemnification.  Contractor releases, holds harmless, and agrees to indemnify BCHA from and 
against all claims, suits, damages (including, without limitation, damages to persons and property 
including deaths, and all tax responsibilities), costs, losses, and expenses, in any manner related to or 
arising from the acts or omissions of Contractor, its managers, members, directors, officers, 
shareholders, agents, and employees. 

 
7. Licensing.  Contractor represents that Contractors possesses the requisite skill, knowledge, and 

experience necessary to perform the Services.  Contractor represents it has or agrees to obtain and 
maintain all necessary registrations, licenses, and insurance as may be required by the State of Idaho 
for the performance of the Services under this Agreement. 

 
8. Notice.  All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows: 

 
BCHA:      CONTRACTOR:  
Blaine County Housing Authority   VABACS L.L.C. 

 Attn: Housing Director    Attn: Mindy J. Reed 
 P.O. Box 4045   P.O. Box 604   
 Ketchum, ID 83340    Jerome, ID 83338 
 
9. Compliance with  Laws/Public Records. Contractor, its managers, members, directors, officers, 

shareholders, agents, and employees shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules, and 
ordinances. This Agreement does not relieve Contractor of any obligation or responsibility imposed 
upon Contractor by law. Without limitation, Contractor hereby acknowledges that all writings and 
documents, including without limitation email, containing information relating to the conduct or 
administration of the public’s business prepared by Contractor for BCHA regardless of physical form 
or characteristics may be public records pursuant to the Idaho Public Records Act.  Contractor further 
acknowledges that, subject to certain limitations, the public may examine and take a copy of all such 
public writings and records.  Accordingly, Contractor shall maintain such writings and records in such 
a manner that they may readily identified, retrieved and made available for such inspection and 
copying.  Should Contractor wish to claim an exemption to disclosure on any record, Contractor shall 
identify such in advance and assume all costs of defense on any associated legal action to defend 
such claimed exemption from disclosure. 
 

10. Non-Assignment. Contractor hereby acknowledges that BCHA has agreed to enter this Agreement 
based in part on Contractor’s unique skills and reputation for professional work.  Accordingly, 
Contractor may not assign, subcontract, or transfer in any manner this Agreement or any of 
Contractor’s right, title or interest in or to this Agreement without the prior written consent of BCHA. 

 
11. Amendments.  This Agreement may only be changed, modified, or amended in writing executed by all 

parties. 
 

12. Non-Waiver.  The failure of either party to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement at any time 
does not constitute a breach of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such rights 
or a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

 
13. Headings. The headings in the Agreement are inserted for convenience and identification only and are 

in no way intended to describe, interpret, define, or limit the scope, extent, or intent of this Agreement 
or any provision hereof. 

20



 
14. Attorney Fees and Costs. In the event that either party hereto is required to retain the services of an 

attorney to enforce any of its rights hereunder, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing party 
all reasonable costs and attorney fees incurred in such enforcement, whether or not litigation is 
commenced and including reasonable costs and attorney fees on appeal.  Prior to any litigation, the 
parties agree to first attend mediation as a means of resolving any disputes. 

 
15. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Idaho.  Venue shall be in 

the Fifth Judicial District, Blaine County, Idaho.   
 

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties respecting the 
matters herein set forth and supersedes any and all prior Agreements between the parties hereto 
respecting such matter. 

 
17. Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such part shall be 

considered as stricken and the rest of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and so as 
to preserve the agreement and intent to the fullest possible extent. 

 
18. Execution and Signatures. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

 
19. Authority. The parties executing this Agreement warrant, state, acknowledge, and affirm that they have 

the authority to sign the same and to bind themselves to the terms contained herein. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement. 
 
BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  VABACS L.L.C. Mindy J Reed, CONTRACTOR 
      
_______________________    ___________________________ 
Keith Perry, Board Chair     Mindy J. Reed, VABACS L.L.C. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Carissa Connelly 
Blaine County Housing Authority Executive Director 

 
  

21



Proposed Statement of Work 
 
Project Purpose: Accounting & Bookkeeping Services 
 
Proposed Scope, Approach & Estimated Cost: See 1099 Engagement Letter below  
  
 

22



VABACS L.L.C. 
 PO Box 604 

 Jerome, ID 83338 
Phone: (208) 358-7438 

Email: mindy@vabacs.com 
Website: vabacs.com 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Dear Valued Client, 

This letter is to confirm our understanding of the terms and objectives of our engagement and the nature and 

limitations of the services you have asked my firm to provide. My hourly rate for this engagement is $65, and I bill in 

increments of 6/10ths of an hour. This increment allows for accurate billing based on the time spent on your project 

while keeping the process efficient. 

I will prepare the Federal and State (if applicable) Form(s) 1099 and Transmittal Form 1096 for the tax year 2024. I will 

not audit or review any information you provide to me in the preparation of these forms. You are solely responsible for 

the information reported on the 1099 and 1096 Forms. Unless you have made other arrangements with my firm, it is 

also your responsibility to mail the forms to the recipients by the respective due date (1/31/2025). I will electronically 

file your forms with the IRS and if eligible to the State Tax Department, otherwise, I will mail them priority to the State 

Tax Department on or before 1/31/2025. 

You are aware that it is your responsibility to determine the recipients of your 1099’s from your company’s books and 

records (unless you have made other arrangements with my firm). It is your responsibility to gather the recipient’s 

correct information required to issue the 1099’s. I have no responsibility for any penalty that may arise from my client(s) 

failure to provide 1099 information to my office by my requested dates (1/20/2025). 

It is my policy to keep records related to this engagement for four years, after which they are destroyed. Records 

retained by my firm are copies only and will be stored electronically in the cloud, via the safe and secure host, 

SmartVault. I do not keep any original client records, so I will return those to you at the completion of the services 

rendered under this engagement. When records are returned to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect your 

records for possible future use, including potential examination by any government or regulatory agencies.  

Invoices issued by my firm are due and payable upon receipt and become delinquent if not paid within 10 days of the 

invoice date. If invoices are not paid within 45 days of the invoice date, at my election, I may stop all work until your 

account is brought current. You acknowledge and agree that I am not required to continue work in the event of your 

failure to pay on a timely basis for services rendered as required by this engagement letter. You further acknowledge 

and agree that in the event I stop work or withdraw from this engagement as a result of your failure to pay my fees on a 

timely basis I will not be liable to you for any damages that occur as a result of my ceasing to render services. My 

services will conclude upon delivery of the completed services discussed above or upon our suspension of services or 

resignation from this engagement. 

I appreciate the opportunity to serve you! Please sign, date and return this letter to me to acknowledge your agreement 

with and acceptance of your responsibilities and the terms of this engagement. 

Sincerely, 

Mindy J. Reed, Bookkeeper/Accountant 

VABACS L.L.C. 

      _________________________________________________ (Entity Name) 
Blaine County Housing Authority

23



 

 

  
BOARD MEETING AGENDA MEMO 

 
 
Meeting Date: January 15, 2025 Staff Member: Carissa Connelly 

  
Agenda Item: Recommendation to approve two contracts for Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 

Choice 
 
  Recommended Motion: 

1. I move to approve contract with Root Policy Research for support in production of Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, subject to final review and approval by legal and consultant 
team.  

2. I move to approve contract with Rian Rooney to lead production of Analysis of Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice.  

 
  Reasons for Recommendation: 

• Root Policy Research possesses the necessary knowledge, skills, and experience to support Rian 
Rooney in structuring the report and providing guidance on the overall production. Root Policy 
Research will also provide specific analysis of components that are outside of Rian’s skillset and 
experience.  Root Policy Research is a well-regarded firm that has conducted more than 70 fair 
housing studies nationwide.  

• Rian Rooney is under contract with the City of Ketchum as a Housing Policy and Program Strategist 
for the City of Ketchum and provides support to BCHA on the production of studies and assessments, 
policy review and advocacy, and deed-restriction and process development. He is very familiar with 
Blaine County housing data and local zoning codes and is well qualified to lead production of the 
analysis of impediments with the support of Root Policy Research.  

• The Analysis of Impediments is an important resource for guiding BCHA’s Goal 2 to identify and 
support policies to promote community housing and housing access. The results of the analysis of 
impediments will be shared with local jurisdictions as resources to help guide policy and process 
amendments in furtherance of fair housing. Production of the Analysis of Impediments is part of the 
2024 BCHA Action Plan and is budgeted.  

 
  Policy Analysis and Background (non-consent items only): 

GOAL 2: RECOMMEND + ADVOCATE FOR POLICY THAT PROMOTES COMMUNITY HOUSING 
 
OBJECTIVE 2:  Identify + support policies to promote community housing supply and access to community 
housing at the local level including: code amendments, projects, programs, funding allocation, etc. 
 

24



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 2 of 14 

ACTION: Conduct countywide Analysis of Impediments to housing choice. Use learnings to recommend 
and support new policies in local governments. 
 
What is an Analysis of Impediments? 
An Analysis of Impediments is a systematic review of policies, factors and conditions – both public and 
private -- that prevent or impede people from having equal access to housing options. It assesses 
disproportionate impacts to housing choice and access for protected classes of people, as defined in the Fair 
Housing Act (FHA), including race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability and familial status. Section 
808(e)(5) of the Fair Housing Act requires the Secretary of HUD to administer the Department’s housing and 
urban development programs in a manner to affirmatively further fair housing. HUD interprets this 
obligation with the requirement that recipients of federal housing grants: 1) conduct an analysis of 
impediments, 2) take appropriate actions to overcome the effects of any impediments identified through 
the analysis, and 3) maintain records reflecting the analysis and actions taken in this regard.  
 
Blaine County local governments that have received HUD funds are obligated to produce an analysis of 
impediments. Blaine County Housing Authority is proposing to lead a county-wide analysis of impediments 
on behalf of its local jurisdictions, with findings and recommendations broken out for each. HUD encourages 
a regional analysis and approach to fair housing analysis. 
 
How does this align with the Action Plan?  
The results and recommendations of the analysis of impediments will be used in BCHA’s fulfilment of Goal 
2, Objective 2 to identify and support policies to promote community housing at the local level. Multiple 
local jurisdictions are currently updating their comprehensive and land use plans and/or undertaking 
significant amendments to their zoning codes. The findings from the analysis of impediments can be used to 
inform and recommend specific amendments that support removal of barriers to fair housing access.  
 
Analysis of Impediments Components 
The analysis of impediments will build upon existing studies, analyses, and assessments produced to date 
across Blaine County, including the Countywide housing needs assessment produced in 2022 and amended 
in 2023 and 2024. That assessment includes quantitative analysis of housing costs and affordability relative 
to local wages across the community, as well as qualitative information from surveys addressing key barriers 
to housing access. The analysis of impediments will examine all six Blaine County jurisdictions and provide 
findings and recommendations for each, to the extent that data is available, as well as summarized findings 
at the Blaine County level, to inform policy and actions to address impediments. 
 
The report will include: 

1. A demographic analysis of Blaine County and its jurisdictions, including a disproportionate housing 
needs analysis for protected classes 

2. An analysis of existing zoning codes and policies across Blaine County jurisdictions and the housing 
product and accessibility produced under those regulations. This will be paired with an affordability 
analysis of the available housing product. 

3. Geographic analysis, including multiple maps, illustrating disparities in access to housing and 
associated opportunity, as well as effects of housing access disparities on economic, health and 
environmental impacts of commuting. 

4. An analysis of language access and barriers affecting housing opportunity at the local jurisdiction 
level and at BCHA.  

25



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 3 of 14 

5. Findings, recommendations and conclusions for local jurisdictions, policymakers and BCHA to 
address housing access disparities and barriers to fair housing choice. 

 
Professional Services Contracts 
Staff is proposing two execute two contracts for preparation of the analysis of impediments by April 2025. 
Production of the report will be led by current City of Ketchum contractor and housing strategist, Rian 
Rooney, who already provides policy analysis and other services to BCHA. Rian will be assisted and 
supported by Root Policy Research, a Denver-based consulting firm with expertise in fair housing analysis.    
 
BCHA staff originally proposed to contract the full analysis of impediments out to a professional services 
firm with expertise in production of these analyses, given staff capacity constraints and the experience of 
such firms. In August 2024, BCHA issued an RFP for production of the analysis of impediments and 
distributed it to several professional services firms that conduct housing studies across the intermountain 
west and nationally. The RFP did not receive any formal bids by the time it closed in September. BCHA staff 
resolved to take on the analysis of impediments “in-house”, given the current and ongoing code and policy 
amendments across Blaine County jurisdictions in 2025. 
 
During the RFP process, one firm, Root Policy Research, inquired about the timeline for production of the 
analysis, which the RFP originally targeted for a December 2024 completion. Root Policy Research does not 
have capacity to undertake the full analysis under the timeline, given other project commitments, but, after 
further engagement with BCHA staff, offered to provide support to BCHA staff and contractors in their “in-
house” production of the report.  
 
Root Policy prepared the State of Idaho Analysis of Impediment for the Idaho Housing and Finance 
Association and Idaho Commerce in 2022 and comes highly recommended by IHFA staff.   
 
Rian Rooney has more than two years of experience working on housing policy, program and data analysis 
in the Blaine County context with the City of Ketchum and BCHA. He was previously a long-range planner for 
Teton County, Wyoming, and is knowledgeable about analysis of zoning code and land use policy. He led 
production of the 2023 and 2024 Blaine County Housing Needs Assessment updates.  
 
Budget  
There is $100,000 already budgeted for the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing for this fiscal year. Root 
Policy Research’s contract is for up to $59,870. Rian Rooney’s contract is for up to $30,000, with up to 
$26,000 budgeted for production of the report and up to $4,000 for travel to and accommodations in Blaine 
County for presentation of the report and related work. 
 
 

 
  Attachments: 

1. Resolution 2025-02 
2. Proposed Contract for Root Policy Research  
3. Resolution 2025-03 
4. Proposed Contract for Rian Rooney 

  

26



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 4 of 14 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-02 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO 
APPROVE A CONTRACT FOR SERVICES WITH ROOT POLICY RESEARCH, 2025 

 
A. WHEREAS, Blaine County Housing Authority seeks to produce an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 

Choice, studying all of Blaine County, as part of its currently adopted Action Plan.  
 

B. WHEREAS, BCHA staff released a Request for Proposals in August 2024 requesting bids for production of 
an Analysis of Impediments and received none, however, Root Policy Research expressed interest in the RFP 
but could not undertake the full scope due to timing constraints;  

 
C. WHEREAS, Root Policy Research has capacity to assist BCHA and contractor, Rian Rooney, in structuring 

the Analysis of Impediments and perform specific, technical analyses, lead engagement, and review, advise 
and recommend findings and conclusions; 

 
D. WHEREAs, Root Policy Research has significant experience in producing fair housing studies and analyses 

of impediments to fair housing choice for local governments and housing organizations; and 
 

E. WHEREAS, the BCHA Executive Director has determined that entering into a contract with Root Policy 
Research to assist with production of the Analysis of Impediments is a necessary and beneficial action 
warranting the approval and authorization of the BCHA Board; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Blaine County Housing 
Authority, Blaine County, Idaho, as follows: 
 

1. The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners approves and authorizes the contract 
for services with Root Policy Research, attached and incorporated herein. 

 
2.  The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners authorizes the BCHA Executive 

Director to manage such contract on behalf of BCHA. 
 
 
DATED this ____day of ______, 2025 
 
 
ATTEST:     BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
_____________________________   ____________________________________ 
 
Executive Director     Chair 
 

27



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 5 of 14 

AGREEMENT WITH ROOT POLICY RESEARCH 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
This Independent Contractor Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered effective to the 15 of January, 2025, 

by and between the Blaine County Housing Authority ( “BCHA”), and Root Policy Research ("Contractor"). 
 

FINDINGS 
 

A. The BCHA is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho. 

B. the BCHA is duly authorized and empowered to enter into such an agreement; 

C. Contractor independently provides certain professional services which may be beneficial and of use for the 
general welfare of the BCHA. 

D. The BCHA finds that it is economical and efficient and that is in the best interests of the BCHA to contract with 
Contractor for certain services as set forth herein (“Services”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this Agreement according to the following terms and conditions: 
 
1. Description of Services. Please refer to the scope of services as proposed in the proposal submitted with this 

contract. 
 

2. Payment for Services. In exchange for Services, BCHA shall pay contractor per the attached cost of services 
schedule, not to exceed $59,807 without additional BCHA approval. Invoices for payment will be submitted monthly 
and payment made by BCHA upon BCHA review and approval within approximately thirty days.  

 
3. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be through the duration of Services, not to exceed the specified maximum 

budget. This term may be extended upon further written agreement between the parties. 
 

4. Independent Contractor. Contractor performs the Services hereunder solely and exclusively as an independent 
contractor.  Contractor is not an employee, servant, agent, partner, or joint venture of the BCHA. The BCHA will 
determine the projects or Services to be done by Contractor, but Contractor will determine the legal means by 
which it accomplishes the work specified by the BCHA.  This Agreement shall not be construed to create or establish 
any employee-employee relationship between the BCHA and Contractor or make Contractor eligible for any BCHA 
employment benefits. Contractor is solely responsible for all withholding and payment of all applicable federal, 
state, and local income or payroll taxes of any kind.    

 
5. Performance and Warranty.  Contractor will provide its own tools and equipment as needed to perform the 

Services.  Contractor warrants that all equipment used to perform this Agreement will function safely, properly, and 
efficiently.  Contractor warrants that all services will be timely performed in a safe, professional, and workmanlike 
manner. 

 
6. Indemnification.  Contractor releases, holds harmless, and agrees to indemnify BCHA from and against all claims, 

suits, damages (including, without limitation, damages to persons and property including deaths, and all tax 
responsibilities), costs, losses, and expenses, in any manner related to or arising from the acts or omissions of 
Contractor, its managers, members, directors, officers, shareholders, agents, and employees. 

 
7. Licensing.  Contractor represents that Contractors possesses the requisite skill, knowledge, and experience 

necessary to perform the Services.  Contractor represents it has or agrees to obtain and maintain all necessary 
registrations, licenses, and insurance as may be required by the State of Idaho for the performance of the Services 
under this Agreement. 

28



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 6 of 14 

 
8. Insurance.  Contractor is not covered by the BCHA’s liability insurance policy.  Contractor shall carry and maintain 

liability insurance in the following minimum amounts: 
General liability    $2,000,000 aggregate 
Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
Products/Completed Operations  $2,000,000 
Personal and Advertising Injury  $1,000,000 
Fire Damage    $1,000,000 
Medical Expense   $15,000 
 

Proof of said insurance shall be provided to BCHA. Each policy of insurance required shall provide for no less than 
thirty-day advance notice to BCHA prior to cancellation.  In addition, the BCHA shall be named a “Additional 
Insured” by all contractors and subcontractors. 

 
9. Notice.  All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows: 

 
BCHA:      CONTRACTOR: 
Blaine County Housing Authority  Root Policy Research  

 Attn: Housing Director    6740 E Colfax Ave 
 P.O. Box 4045   Denver, CO 80220    
 Ketchum, ID 83340 
 
10. Compliance with  Laws/Public Records. Contractor, its managers, members, directors, officers, shareholders, 

agents, and employees shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules, and ordinances. This Agreement 
does not relieve Contractor of any obligation or responsibility imposed upon Contractor by law. Without limitation, 
Contractor hereby acknowledges that all writings and documents, including without limitation email, containing 
information relating to the conduct or administration of the public’s business prepared by Contractor for BCHA 
regardless of physical form or characteristics may be public records pursuant to the Idaho Public Records Act.  
Contractor further acknowledges that, subject to certain limitations, the public may examine and take a copy of all 
such public writings and records.  Accordingly, Contractor shall maintain such writings and records in such a manner 
that they may readily identified, retrieved and made available for such inspection and copying.  Should Contractor 
wish to claim an exemption to disclosure on any record, Contractor shall identify such in advance and assume all 
costs of defense on any associated legal action to defend such claimed exemption from disclosure. 
 

11. Non-Assignment. Contractor hereby acknowledges that BCHA has agreed to enter this Agreement based in part on 
Contractor’s unique skills and reputation for professional work.  Accordingly, Contractor may not assign, 
subcontract, or transfer in any manner this Agreement or any of Contractor’s right, title or interest in or to this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of BCHA. 

 
12. Amendments.  This Agreement may only be changed, modified, or amended in writing executed by all parties. 

 
13. Non-Waiver.  The failure of either party to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement at any time does not 

constitute a breach of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such rights or a waiver of any 
subsequent breach. 

 
14. Headings. The headings in the Agreement are inserted for convenience and identification only and are in no way 

intended to describe, interpret, define, or limit the scope, extent, or intent of this Agreement or any provision 
hereof. 

 
15. Attorney Fees and Costs. In the event that either party hereto is required to retain the services of an attorney to 

enforce any of its rights hereunder, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing party all reasonable costs and 
attorney fees incurred in such enforcement, whether or not litigation is commenced and including reasonable costs 

29



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 7 of 14 

and attorney fees on appeal.  Prior to any litigation, the parties agree to first attend mediation as a means of 
resolving any disputes. 

 
16. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Idaho.  Venue shall be in the Fifth 

Judicial District, Blaine County, Idaho.   
 

17. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties respecting the matters 
herein set forth and supersedes any and all prior Agreements between the parties hereto respecting such matter. 

 
18. Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such part shall be considered as 

stricken and the rest of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and so as to preserve the agreement 
and intent to the fullest possible extent. 

 
19. Execution and Signatures. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

20. Authority. The parties executing this Agreement warrant, state, acknowledge, and affirm that they have the 
authority to sign the same and to bind themselves to the terms contained herein. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement. 
 
BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  ROOT POLICY RESEARCH, CONTRACTOR 
      
_______________________    ___________________________ 
Keith Perry, Board Chair     ____________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
 
Blaine County Housing Authority Clerk 

 

30



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 8 of 14 

Root Policy Research Scope of Work 
January 10, 2025 
 
Blaine County Housing Authority requests the support of Root Policy Research to assist in the production of an analysis 
of impediments to fair housing choice in Blaine County, Idaho. The analysis will address all five of Blaine County’s 
incorporated jurisdictions (Sun Valley, Ketchum, Hailey, Bellevue, and Carey), as well as unincorporated Blaine County. 
Findings and recommendations will be summarized at a cross-jurisdictional, Blaine County level to the extent data are 
available, with individual jurisdiction findings and recommendations provided when practical and available. Production 
of the report will be led by Rian Rooney, contractor for Blaine County Housing Authority.  
 
Due Date: April 2025 – Precise timing to be determined based on presentation scheduling  
 
Tasks for Root Policy 
 

1. Advise Rian Rooney on structure of report and approach, including best practices for data sources and analysis 
of elements necessary for HUD and streamlining production. Root Policy deliverable will be a comprehensive 
report outline that indicates respective roles for analysis and report writing (delivered week of January 20).  

a. Provide check-ins / availability to advise over email or optional weekly meeting, if necessary 
2. Demographic / Disproportionate Needs Analysis 

a. BCHA has high-level housing needs data from 2022 Housing Needs Assessment but need to break down 
by demographics and identify disproportionate need for protected classes. Analysis will depend on the 
number of observations by demographic group and will be as detailed as possible. Deliverable timing 
will depend on provision of data (late February or early March is ideal) 

3. Geographic Analysis  
a. Incorporate geographic analysis and map visualizations, where appropriate and meaningful, to 

demonstrate disparities in access, demographic differences, housing costs, commute times etc. across 
Blaine County  

b. Analyze environmental, health, financial and social impacts of regional housing distribution relative to 
job centers and commuting patterns 

4. Housing Costs / Product Developed / Mobile Home Parks 
a. Rian Rooney will lead analysis of local zoning codes, but Root Policy will assist with any data analysis 

regarding what the market is producing – or how the market is valuing the product – and its 
accessibility. BCHA has a contact with the Board of Realtors who can pull transaction data since it is not 
publicly available, and we have done some of this in the past. Deliverable date is mid- to late March 

5. Language Access Analysis. Language access needs will be assessed through engagement (see below) as well as a 
review of materials that local jurisdictions and  BCHA provide in languages other than English.  

6. Lead and facilitate stakeholder engagement process to obtain input from community members, particularly for 
whom fair housing is a concern 

a. BCHA and Root Policy will create an engagement plan based on availability of community organizations 
and case workers, as well as timing and best practice. BCHA will provide Root Policy with a list of 
stakeholders who work in the areas of affordable housing provision, supportive services, and low to 
moderate income resident and worker advocacy. This plan will determine dates for up to three virtual 
focus groups at different times, likely between February 24 and March 7. Root Policy will develop the 
facilitation guide, facilitate the groups, and incorporate findings into the report analysis and 
recommendations. Alternatively, or supplementally, Root Policy will hold a virtual organizing meeting 
with community navigators and provide them with materials to conduct focus groups with clients.  

b. BCHA staff includes two Spanish speakers and can assist with engagement activities, if needed 
c. Work with Rian Rooney to incorporate data from previous engagement efforts  

7. Assist Rian Rooney with findings and recommendations for conclusion / summary 
8. Provide an explanation of any methodologies used for evaluation and analysis.  
9. Presentation of Findings. Root Policy will provide up to two presentations of findings of its portion of the 

analysis.  
31



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 9 of 14 

 
Cost of Services Schedule 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 10 of 14 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-03 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO 
APPROVE A CONTRACT FOR SERVICES WITH RIAN ROONEY, 2025 

 
F. WHEREAS, Blaine County Housing Authority seeks to produce an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 

Choice, studying all of Blaine County, as part of its currently adopted Action Plan.  
 

G. WHEREAS, the contractor, Rian Rooney, has been providing effective services to Blaine County Housing 
Authority, via an existing contract with the City of Ketchum, advising and recommending policy, analyzing 
land use and zoning proposal, performing data analysis and producing reports, and assisting with general 
operations and data and system transition for Blaine County Housing Authority since March 2023; and 
 

H. WHEREAS, the contractor has the ability, skills and experience to oversee and lead the production of a 
county-wide Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 

 
I. WHEREAS, the BCHA Executive Director has determined that entering into a contract with Rian Rooney to 

lead production of the Analysis of Impediments is a necessary and beneficial action warranting the approval 
and authorization of the BCHA Board; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Blaine County Housing 
Authority, Blaine County, Idaho, as follows: 
 

3. The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners approves and authorizes the contract 
for services with Rian Rooney, attached and incorporated herein. 

 
4.  The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners authorizes the BCHA Executive 

Director to manage such contract on behalf of BCHA. 
 
 
DATED this ____day of ______, 2025 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:     BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
_____________________________   ____________________________________ 
 
Executive Director     Chair 
 

33



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 11 of 14 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT WITH RIAN ROONEY 
FOR SERVICES 

 
This Independent Contractor Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered effective to the 15th of January, 

2024, by and between the Blaine County Housing Authority (“BCHA”), and Rian Rooney ("Contractor"). 
FINDINGS 

 
E. The BCHA is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho. 

F. the BCHA is duly authorized and empowered to enter into such an agreement; 

G. Contractor independently provides certain professional services which may be beneficial and of use for the 
general welfare of the BCHA. 

H. The BCHA finds that it is economical and efficient and that is in the best interests of the BCHA to contract with 
Contractor for certain services as set forth herein (“Services”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this Agreement according to the following terms and conditions: 
 
21. Description of Services. Please refer to the scope of services as proposed in the proposal submitted with this 

contract. 
 

22. Payment for Services. In exchange for Services, the BCHA shall pay Contractor $90 / hour, not to exceed $26,000 
without additional BCHA approval. An additional $4,000 is budgeted for travel to, accommodations, and expenses in 
Blaine County for presentation of the report. Invoices for payment will be submitted monthly and payment made by 
BCHA upon BCHA review and approval within approximately thirty days.  

 
23. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be through the duration of Services, not to exceed the specified maximum 

budget. This term may be renewed or extended upon further written agreement between the parties. 
 

24. Independent Contractor. Contractor performs the Services hereunder solely and exclusively as an independent 
contractor.  Contractor is not an employee, servant, agent, partner, or joint venture of the BCHA. The BCHA will 
determine the projects or Services to be done by Contractor, but Contractor will determine the legal means by 
which it accomplishes the work specified by the BCHA.  This Agreement shall not be construed to create or establish 
any employer-employee relationship between the BCHA and Contractor or make Contractor eligible for any BCHA 
employment benefits. Contractor is solely responsible for all withholding and payment of all applicable federal, 
state, and local income or payroll taxes of any kind.    

 
25. Performance and Warranty.  Contractor will provide its own tools and equipment as needed to perform the 

Services.  Contractor warrants that all equipment used to perform this Agreement will function safely, properly, and 
efficiently.  Contractor warrants that all services will be timely performed in a safe, professional, and workmanlike 
manner. 

 
26. Indemnification.  Contractor releases, holds harmless, and agrees to indemnify BCHA from and against all claims, 

suits, damages (including, without limitation, damages to persons and property including deaths, and all tax 
responsibilities), costs, losses, and expenses, in any manner related to or arising from the acts or omissions of 
Contractor, its managers, members, directors, officers, shareholders, agents, and employees. 

 
27. Licensing.  Contractor represents that Contractor possesses the requisite skill, knowledge, and experience necessary 

to perform the Services.  Contractor represents it has or agrees to obtain and maintain all necessary registrations, 
licenses, and insurance as may be required by the State of Idaho for the performance of the Services under this 
Agreement. 

34



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 12 of 14 

 
28. Insurance.  Contractor is not covered by the BCHA’s liability insurance policy.  Contractor shall carry and maintain 

their own liability insurance. in the following minimum amounts: 
General liability    $2,000,000 aggregate 
Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
Products/Completed Operations  $2,000,000 
Personal and Advertising Injury  $1,000,000 
Fire Damage    $1,000,000 
Medical Expense   $15,000 
 

Proof of said insurance shall be provided to BCHA. Each policy of insurance required shall provide for no less than 
thirty-day advance notice to BCHA prior to cancellation.  In addition, the BCHA shall be named a “Additional 
Insured” by all contractors and subcontractors. 

 
29. Notice.  All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows: 

 
BCHA:      CONTRACTOR: 
Blaine County Housing Authority   Rian Rooney  

 Attn: Housing Director    427 St. Johns Place 
 P.O. Box 4045   Apartment 3B     
 Ketchum, ID 83340    Brooklyn, NY 11238 
 
30. Compliance with  Laws/Public Records. Contractor, its managers, members, directors, officers, shareholders, 

agents, and employees shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules, and ordinances. This Agreement 
does not relieve Contractor of any obligation or responsibility imposed upon Contractor by law. Without limitation, 
Contractor hereby acknowledges that all writings and documents, including without limitation email, containing 
information relating to the conduct or administration of the public’s business prepared by Contractor for BCHA 
regardless of physical form or characteristics may be public records pursuant to the Idaho Public Records Act.  
Contractor further acknowledges that, subject to certain limitations, the public may examine and take a copy of all 
such public writings and records.  Accordingly, Contractor shall maintain such writings and records in such a manner 
that they may readily identified, retrieved and made available for such inspection and copying.  Should Contractor 
wish to claim an exemption to disclosure on any record, Contractor shall identify such in advance and assume all 
costs of defense on any associated legal action to defend such claimed exemption from disclosure. 
 

31. Non-Assignment. Contractor hereby acknowledges that BCHA has agreed to enter this Agreement based in part on 
Contractor’s unique skills and reputation for professional work.  Accordingly, Contractor may not assign, 
subcontract, or transfer in any manner this Agreement or any of Contractor’s right, title or interest in or to this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of BCHA. 

 
32. Amendments.  This Agreement may only be changed, modified, or amended in writing executed by all parties. 

 
33. Non-Waiver.  The failure of either party to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement at any time does not 

constitute a breach of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such rights or a waiver of any 
subsequent breach. 

 
34. Headings. The headings in the Agreement are inserted for convenience and identification only and are in no way 

intended to describe, interpret, define, or limit the scope, extent, or intent of this Agreement or any provision 
hereof. 

 
35. Attorney Fees and Costs. In the event that either party hereto is required to retain the services of an attorney to 

enforce any of its rights hereunder, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing party all reasonable costs and 
attorney fees incurred in such enforcement, whether or not litigation is commenced and including reasonable costs 

35



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 13 of 14 

and attorney fees on appeal.  Prior to any litigation, the parties agree to first attend mediation as a means of 
resolving any disputes. 

 
36. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Idaho.  Venue shall be in the Fifth 

Judicial District, Blaine County, Idaho.   
 

37. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties respecting the matters 
herein set forth and supersedes any and all prior Agreements between the parties hereto respecting such matter. 

 
38. Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such part shall be considered as 

stricken and the rest of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and so as to preserve the agreement 
and intent to the fullest possible extent. 

 
39. Execution and Signatures. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

40. Authority. The parties executing this Agreement warrant, state, acknowledge, and affirm that they have the 
authority to sign the same and to bind themselves to the terms contained herein. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement. 
 
BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  RIAN ROONEY, CONTRACTOR 
      
_______________________   ___________________________ 
Keith Perry, Board Chair      
 
 
ATTEST: 
________________________ 
 
Blaine County Housing Authority Clerk  

36



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 1/10/25, Page 14 of 14 

Proposed Statement of Work – Rian Rooney  
 
 
Project Purpose: Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice Report 
 
Proposed Scope: BCHA is seeking a professional independent contractor to lead production and deliver of an Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice: 

 
• Rian Rooney will work with Root Policy Research to facilitate and produce an Analysis of Impediments to Fair 

Housing Choice for Blaine County, with data and findings broken out, where available, at the jurisdictional 
level. Rian Rooney will lead production of the report and be responsible for elements outside the scope of 
Root Policy Research’s contract.  

 
• The Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice will review local laws, codes, regulations and policies to 

assess how they affect the location, availability, affordability and accessibility of housing in a range of sizes. 
It will also assess the public and private conditions affecting fair housing choice for protected classes, 
including an analysis of disproportionate housing needs among protected classes. The analysis will identify 
any impediments restrict or have the effect of restricting housing choices or the availability of housing 
choices based on race, color, religion, sex, disability, familial status, or national origin.  

 
• Report will include findings and recommendations for individual jurisdictions, as well as summaries at the 

Blaine County level to inform policymakers and decision makers of actions that can be taken to remove 
barriers to fair housing choice. 

 
• Contractor will present findings and recommendations virtually and in-person to local policymakers, 

implementation partners and the general public.   
 

Approach: The consultant will work closely with city and BCHA staff and other partner agencies. 
 
Project Budget: Contractor will provide up to 289 hours of work on this project, at a rate of $90/hour, not to exceed 
$26,000. An additional $4,000 is budgeted in this contract to cover travel, accommodations and other expenses 
associated with travel to and from Blaine County at the conclusion of the report to present on findings and 
recommendations. Total budget for this contract is $30,000.  
 

37


	Top
	4.	Staff update - Housing Director Carissa Connelly
	Monthly Staff Update-January 2025

	5.	Approval of the December 18, 2024 BCHA Board Meeting Minutes-Heather Nicolai
	12.18.24 BCHA Minutes

	6.	Approval of the December 2024 BCHA Financial Reports-Heather Nicolai
	241231BCHAFinancialReports

	7.	Recommendation to Approve Accounting/Bookkeeping Services-Heather Nicolai
	Staff Report-Contract for Services-Accountant-Bookkeeper

	8.	Recommendation to approve two contracts for Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice-Carissa Connelly
	Staff Report - Contracts for Services - Analysis of Impediments

	Bottom

